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To,
The Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the 3™ Annual Report and the Audited
financial Statements of NSE IFSC Clearing Corporation Limited (the ‘Company or
NICCL’) for the year ended March 31, 2019.

NICCL was incorporated as a public company on December 2, 2016 at Ahmedabad
under the Companies Act, 2013. NICCL is a step-down subsidiary of National Stock
Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE), wherein 100% of its share capital is held by NSE
Clearing Limited (NCL) formerly known as National Securities Clearing Corporation
Limited (NSCCL), a subsidiary of NSE. The Company has been incorporated to carry
on the business inter-alia of setting up and operating a clearing corporation as a unit
in an International Financial Service Centre in any SEZ as approved by the
Government of India or anywhere globally to carry on the business of clearing and
settlement of any kind, including physical and cash settlement, of securities.

NICCL has formulated the Rules, Regulations and Byelaws which are consistent with
the Principles for Financial Market Infrastructures (PFMIs) issued by the Committee
on Payment and Settlement Systems (CPSS) and International Organisation of
Securities Commissions (I0SCO).

NICCL commenced its operations as a Clearing Corporation in the GIFT City,
Gandhinagar, Guijarat, India with effect from June 5, 2017 after receiving approval
from SEBI. The required annual renewal from SEBI for the current year (2019-20) is
awaited.

NICCL has put in place a robust and comprehensive Risk Management System. It
clears and settles trades executed on NSE IFSC Ltd, a subsidiary of National Stock
Exchange.

NICCL has the following types of clearing membership — Professional Clearing
Member, Trading Cum Clearing Member and Trading Cum Self Clearing Member.
The various asset classes that are cleared and settled by NICCL are:

NSE IFSC Clearing Corporation Limited | 1202, Brigade International Financial Centre, 12th Floor, Building No. 14-A, Block No. 14, Zone 1, GIFT SEZ,
Gandhinagar, Gujarat-382355, India | 079 66743500 | www.nseifscclearing.com | CIN U65990GJ2016PLC094545
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Category Instrument | Key Features N
Type
Equity Derivatives Futures & |+ Trading Hours:
Options | gession 1 - 08:00 17:00
Single Stock Futures & | Session 2 -17:30 -23:30
Derivatives Options « Currency of Trade: US Dollars
Currency Futures & | * Contract Calendar: Weekly, Monthly,
Derivatives Options Quarterly expiries
Commodity Futures » Margining: SPAN Based
Derivatives - Settlement: Cash Settled
(Non Agri) .
« Daily Settlement: T+1 Day

Till March 31, 2019, NICCL had 6 clearing members (3 trading cum Clearing
Members and 3 Trading cum Self Clearing Members). Clearing Banks are the key
link between clearing members and NICCL for funds settlement. Members are
required to maintain and operate clearing account with any one of the four clearing
banks empanelled with NICCL.

1. Initiatives and major events during the year ended March 31, 2019

o SEBI granted Qualifying Central Counterparty (QCCP) status to NICCL.

e NICCL applied to European Securities Market Authority for recognition as a
third country CCP under the European Market Infrastructure Regulation
(EMIR). The decision of ESMA is awaited.

A “Segregated Nominee Account Structure” has been put in place in the GIFT
IFSC after SEBI approval. Under this structure, eligible Segregated Nominee
Account Providers can permit their clients to access the markets in the IFSC
through trading and clearing members without any additional due diligence
requirements, easing the access to the IFSC markets.

o NICCL submitted a proposal to SEBI to offer an Individually Segregated
Collateral Facility to its clearing members. Under the proposed facility, the
clients of the clearing members can provide collateral directly to NICCL which
will only be utilized towards the obligation of such clients. The proposed
facility will help bring in clients who do not wish to take exposure against the
clearing members operating in the IFSC and is in line with the best practices
in the global CCPs. Approval from SEBI is awaited.

« NICCL received approval from SEBI to open account with Euroclear Bank for
acceptance of eligible foreign securities as collateral. Admission process is in
progress.
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NICCL prescribed the procedure for Clearing and settlement of Masala Bonds
(Debt Securities).

NICCL started providing margin benefits for offsetting position in various

products.

Continuation Sheet

NICCL successfully conducted Mock Trading sessions in 2018-19 from its
BCP / DR site at Chennai.
NICCL introduced enhanced One Time Password (OTP) based Two-Factor

Authentication (2FA) mechanism for various applications.

2. Operations

The total value of settlement for 2018-19 was US $ 5.57 million. The highest
monthly settlement was US $ 8,49,483 for December 2018. As on March 31,
2019, the Core Settlement Guarantee Fund stood at US $ 11,33,509. The details
of operations for 2018-19 are as given in the table below:

Month No. of Turnover | MTM Final Premium Exercise Total
Contrac | * Settlement | Settlement | Settlement | Settlement | Settlement
ts (inMn$) | (in$) (in $) (in §) (in$) (in $)
Traded

April-18 | 158060 | 1658.38 573938.75 | 1621.20 - - 574873.65

May-18 | 267375 | 2859.76 472173.75 | 3110.90 11053.70 1735.20 473977.30

Jun-18 | 540765 | 5857.56 671415.00 | 13460.55 57591.90 956.90 689911.45

Jul-18 | 799947 | 8860.18 193247.20 | 442.40 94304.60 26581.70 280494.65

Aug-18 | 781028 | 9059.65 306481.00 | 1503.80 68947.55 13672.00 368371.40

Sept-18 | 812011 | 9273.00 289327.40 | 4617.85 106014.05 | 11889.85 345467.00

Oct-18 659355 | 7397.36 459442 60 | 104453.85 | 132838.00 | 65416.80 496702.10

Nov-18 | 541956 | 6603.43 366318.95 | 8667.10 92677.55 105091.20 | 457668.35

Dec-18 | 562147 | 6868.77 760814.75 | 14278.55 173627.80 | 64533.60 849483.00

Jan-19 | 722644 | 9118.95 287118.10 | 36778.20 122743.00 | 16445.85 362829.55

Feb-19 | 581891 | 7453.80 201091.20 | 6388.00 112987.15 | 32494.45 252792.15

Mar-19 | 470804 289757.40 | 70992.30 161212.15 | 143144.85 | 418824.95

6521.90

*Turnover includes value of futures and notional value of options.
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3. Financials
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3.1. The financial results for the year ended on March 31, 2019 are summarized

hereunder :

(Rs. in ‘lakhs’)
Particulars 2018-19 201718
Income 12.94 -
Expenditure 653.20 894.26
Profit/(Loss) before tax (640.26) (894.26)
Add/(Less) provision for tax (including deferred tax) - -
Profit/(Loss) after tax (640.26) (894.26)
Add/ (Less): ltems that will not be reclassified to 325.97 32.97
profit or loss
Add/(less): Income-tax relating to items that will not - -
be reclassified to profit or loss
Total comprehensive income (314.29) (861.29)
Profit/(Loss) bought forward from previous year (1838.33) (249.07)
Less: Contribution to core SGF (50.31) (689.54)
Less: Share issue expenses (0.50) (38.43)
Balance carried to Balance Sheet (2203.43) (1838.33)

3.2.Dividend

In view of the loss incurred by the Company for the year under review, the Board
of Directors did not recommend any dividend for the financial year 2018-19.

3.3.Transfer to Reserves

In view of the loss, no amount was available for transferring to General Reserves

for the year 2018-19.

3.4.Loans, Guarantees and Investments Under Section 186 of the

Companies Act, 2013

During the period under review, the Company did not grant any loan to any
person or body corporate, and did not provide any guarantee or security In
connection with a loan to any person or body corporate. Further, the Company
did not make any investment/ acquisition in terms of Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year 2018-19.
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3.5.Contracts or Arrangements with Related parties

All the related party transactions entered into by the Company were in the
ordinary course of business and were at arm’s length basis. Transactions with
related parties were conducted in a transparent manner, aligned fully with the
interests of the Company and its Stakeholders. The particulars of contracts or
arrangements with related parties form part of the financial statements.

3.6.Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls

As regards internal financial controls in the Company, the noteworthy feature of
its operations is the high degree of automation in the key areas of its operations
and processes. All the processes are also well documented with comprehensive
and well defined Standard Operating Procedures (SoPs) which inter-alia include
the financial controls in the form of maker-checker, strict adherence to financial
delegation given by the Board at various levels, system controls, information
security controls as well as role-based access controls. Further, these controls
are periodically reviewed while introducing new processes/changes in processes,
changes in the systems, and changes in personnel handling the activities. These
controls are also independently reviewed by the internal auditors whereby they
specifically review the controls to establish their adequacy and effectiveness. The
Internal Auditors and Secretarial Auditors review the compliances by the
Company with respect to applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

3.7.Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies
The Company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture or associate Company.
3.8.Deposits

The Company has not invited, accepted or renewed any deposits within the
meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the requirement
to furnish details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Companies
Act, 2013 does not apply to the company.

3.9.Risk Management

The Company has an enterprise-wide risk assessment and review mechanism
which inter alia consists of risk identification, assessment and categorisation of
risks taking into account the impact and likelihood of risks and putting in place
adequate controls and mitigation plans which has helped in reducing the overall
risk exposure for the Company and also the impact thereof.

In this direction, the Company has a Risk Management Committee, a
subcommittee of the Board, which meets periodically to review the efficacy and
adequacy of the Company’s risk management exercise and the controls and
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mitigation plans put in place to reduce the overall impact of the various inherent
risks.

The Risk Management Committee has formulated risk management policy and
monitors its implementation.

3.10. Material Changes and Commitments

There were no material changes and commitments during the reporting year that
adversely affected the financial position of the Company.

The Company received approval from SEBI vide its letter dated May 23, 2018,
granting recognition as a Clearing Corporation for a period of one year effective
from May 29, 2018. The Company commenced its operations as a Clearing
Corporation with effect from June 5, 2017.

3.14. Significant Orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or
Tribunals Impacting the Company

During the year under review, there were no significant or material orders passed
by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which would impact the status of the
Company as a going concern.

3.12. Explanations or Comments on the Auditor’s Report

As there was no qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer made
by the Statutory Auditors, appointed under Section 139 of the Companies Act,
2013, in their report, there was no need for explanations or comments by the
Board. The report of Statutory Auditor forms part of the financial statements.

3.13. Share Capital

The authorized share capital of the Company is Rs. 100 crore divided into 10
crore equity shares of Rs. 10 each.

During the year under review, the paid-up share capital of the company was
increased to Rs. 75 crore divided into 7.5 crore equity shares of Rs. 10 each
through allotment of 50,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each at par to NSE
Clearing Limited, on rights basis.

4. Change in Registered Office

During the year under review, the registered office of the Company was shifted from
Unit no. 46 & 47, GIFT Aspire One Business Centre, 1st floor, Block-12, Road1-D,
Zone-1, GIFT-SEZ Gandhinagar, Gujarat-382355 to Unit-1202, brigade
international financial center, 12th floor, Block-14, Road 1C, Zone-1, GIFT SEZ,
GIFT CITY, Gandhinagar Gujarat — 382355, with effect from October 29, 2018.




N S E Continuation Sheet

International
Clearing

5. Extract of the Annual Return

In terms of MCA notification dated January 4, 2017, the IFSC Public Companies are
exempted from complying with the provisions of Section 92 (3) of the Companies
Act, 2013 and hence the Company is not required to provide an extract of Annual
Return which forms part of the Board's report.

6. Human Resources

The Company considers its employees as the most valuable resource and ensures
strategic alignment of Human Resource practices to business priorities and
objectives. As on March 31, 2019, the Company had a dedicated human capital of 9
employees which included 2 employees on deputation from NSE and 4 employees
on deputation from NSE Clearing Limited.

None of the employees of the Company is drawing remuneration in excess of the
limits as specified in sub-rule (2) of Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

6.1.Disclosures under Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013

The disclosures required to be given under the Sexual Harassment of Women at
workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 are provided in the
following table:

1 | Number of complaints of sexual harassment NIL
received during the year ended March 31, 2019
2 | Number of complaints disposed off during the Not applicable
year ended March 31, 2019
3 | Number of cases pending for more than ninety Not applicable
days
4 | Number of workshops or awareness programs Awareness
against sexual harassment carried out program was done
for all employees
5 | Nature of action taken by the employer Not applicable

Pursuant to the Companies (Accounts) Amendment Act, 2018 effective from
315t July, 2018, NICCL has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of
Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
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7. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
7.1. Directors:

Mr. Natarajan Ramasamy is Director of the Company since incorporation. Mr.
Mukesh Agarwal is Director and Prof. Samir K Barua is the Independent Director
and Chairman of the Board of the Company.

7.2. Declaration of Independence

The terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Director are as per
schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013. Prof. Samir Barua, Independent
Director has submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria of Independence
as provided in the sub section(6) of section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
there have been no changes in the circumstances which may affect his status as
Independent Director during the year.

7.3. Directors Retiring by Rotation

Pursuant to the MCA notification dated January 4, 2017, the IFSC Public
Companies are exempted from complying with the provisions of Section 152 (6)
& (7) of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence none of the Directors of the
Company shall retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

7.4. Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Vivek Singhvi, Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Nitin Bhadre, Chief Financial
Officer and Mr. Chirag S Nagda, Company Secretary are the Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company, pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013.

Mr. Bhavesh Shah resigned as the Chief Financial Officer, with effect from
October 22, 2018. Further, Mr. Aniket Bhanu resigned as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company with effect from January 21, 2019. The Board placed on
record its appreciation for the valuable contribution made by them to the
functioning and development of the Company.

Mr. Nitin Bhadre was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer, with effect from
October 23, 2018. Mr. Vivek Singhvi was appointed as the Chief Executive
Officer, with effect from January 22, 2019.
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8. NICCL Board

8.1. Board Evaluation

In terms of the MCA notification dated January 4, 2017, the IFSC Public
Companies are exempted from complying with the provisions of Section 178 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and hence the Company is not required to constitute
Nomination and Remuneration Committee to discharge the functions mandated
under the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Despite the above, NICCL carried out an evaluation of the Board of Directors.
The evaluation was done on the basis of a questionnaire with the aim to evaluate
the performance of the Board and of individual directors. The performance of the
Board and individual Directors was evaluated by the Board seeking inputs from
each Director. The criteria for performance evaluation of the Board included
board composition, shared vision and strategy, the effectiveness of Board
processes, and adequacy of information to the Board. The criteria for
performance evaluation of the individual Directors included acting independently
and in the best interests of the Company, and contributing to Board meetings by
devoting sufficient time to understand the issues under discussion. The Chairman
of the Board was also evaluated on the key aspects of the role.

8.2. Number of Board Meetings

During the financial year 2018-19, 5 (five) Board Meetings were convened and
held. The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed
under the Companies Act, 2013. Board Meetings were conducted on April 23,
2018, June 21, 2018, July 25, 2018, October 22, 2018, and January 21, 2019.
The details of the attendance of the directors at the meetings held on the above

dates are given in the table hereunder:

Name Number of meetings held | Number of
during membership meetings attended
Mr. Natarajan Ramasamy 5 5
Mr. Mukesh Agarwal 5
Prof. Samir K Barua 5 5

10
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8.3. Audit Committee

In terms of the MCA notification dated January 4, 2017, the IFSC Public
Companies are exempted from complying with the provisions of Section 177 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and hence the Company is not required to constitute
Audit Committee to discharge the functions mandated under the provisions of
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.

8.4. Company’s Policy on Directors’ Appointment and Remuneration
including Criteria for determining Qualifications, Positive Attributes,
Independence of Directors

The provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to policy on
Directors' appointment and remuneration including the criteria for determining
qualifiCations, positive atttibutes, independence of a Director and other matters
are not applicable to the Company as per the exemption notification no. G.S.R.
08(E) dated January 4, 2017.

During the year under review, none of the Non-Executive Directors was drawing
remuneration from the Company. The sitting fees were paid to the Independent
Director and the same was in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the rules thereunder.

8.5.Directors’ Responsibility Statement
Your Directors confirm that:

i. The applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures, if any, in the preparation of the
annual accounts;

ii. The Directors selected accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the year
i.e., 31t March, 2019 and of the losses of the Company for that period;.

ii. The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
Adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv. The Directors have ensured that the annual accounts are prepared on a going
concern basis;

v. The Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the
Company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were
operating effectively; and

11
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vi. The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provision of all applicable laws and such systems are adequate and were
operating effectively.

9. Statutory Auditors

M/s. Haribhakti & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, were appointed as
Statutory Auditors of the Company at the 1%t Annual General Meeting held on
September 12, 2017 for a period of 5 (five) years from the conclusion of 1st
Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 6" Annual General Meeting. The
requirement of seeking ratification of the members for the continuance of their
appointment has been withdrawn consequent upon the changes made by the
Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 with effect from May 07, 2018. Hence the
resolution seeking ratification of the members for their appointment is not being
placed at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

M/s. Haribhakti & Co. LLP, have confirmed that, their appointment, if made,
would be in accordance with section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
rules made thereunder and that they are not disqualified in terms of section 141
of the Act.

10. Secretarial Audit

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the
Company appointed M/s Umesh Ved & Associates, Company Secretaries to
undertake the Secretarial Audit of your Company for the Financial Year 2018-19.
The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed herewith as Annexure 1. The report
does not contain any qualifications, reservation or adverse remarks.

11. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and
Foreign Exchange Earnings/Outgo

11.1. The Company has always been conscious of the need to conserve
energy. The Company is continuously identifying the area where energy
can be saved and appropriate measures have been taken for optimizing
energy conservation.

11.2. General Lighting System

LED lights have been used for office area lighting in place of conventional CFL
type lights. LED lights consume less energy and have more longevity and
reliability than that of conventional CFL lights. By using LED lights, around 600
units of electricity were saved last year.

12
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Lighting system — Savings in KWH units
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11.2.1. Occupancy Sensor:

Occupancy sensors have been installed so that lights are switched off
automatically when the area is not in use. This has also reduced the energy
consumption substantially towards lighting.

11.2.2. Energy Conservative measures taken up for the building by GIFT
City Limited

District Cooling System (DCS):

The office air conditioning is being fed from the GIFT's District Cooling System
with state of the art technology with Thermal Energy Storage System. This has
resulted in the reduction of electricity consumption towards the operation of Air-
Conditioning System in NSE's office area by around 3000 Tr-Hr per year as
compared to conventional AC System.

11.3. Technology Absorption:

The Company uses the latest technologies for its operations. The Company has
not imported any technology during the year under review.

11.4. Foreign Exchange earnings/outgo:

There were no foreign exchange earnings during the year ended March 31, 2019.
However, the foreign exchange inflow during the said year was USD 7,05,915.57
received towards equity contribution from Holding company NSE Clearing Limited
(Formerly known as National Securities Clearing Corporation Limited).

13
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The Directors are grateful for the support and co-operation extended by NSE
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

KRN

Prof. Samir K Barua
Chairman

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 24, 2019
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UMESH VED & ASSOCIATES

. Company Secretaries
304, Shoppers PlazaV, Opp. Municipal Market, C, G. Road, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad - 380 009,

o ) Telefax : (O} +91 79 26464153, 48904153 = Moblie +91 98250 35508
E mail : infol@umeshvedcs.com, umeshvedcs.office@airieimail in * Website | www.umeshvedcs.com

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31571 MARCH, 2019

Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.? of the Companies
g, P
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

Ta,

The Members,

NSE IFSC CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED,
Unit-1202, Brigade International Financial Centre 12th Floor,
Bloek-14, Road 10, Lone-1,

GIFT Ser Gift City,

Gandhimagar G] 382355

We have condueted the sccretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisionsand the
adherence to good corporate practices by NSE IFSC CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED (hereinafter
called the Company)Sccretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute hooks, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers,
apents and authorized representatives during the conduet of secretarial audit, We hereby report that i out
opinion, the company has, duting the audit year covering the year ended on 31+ March, 2019 complied with
ihe statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and

compliance-mechanism in place to the extent , in the manner and subject 1o the reporting made herematters:

We have examined the books, papers, minute baoks, forms and retuns filed and, other records mamiained
by the Company for the vear ended on 31 March, 2019 according to the provisions of:

i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

{#) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA’) and the rules made thercunder:

(i) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder:

fiv) Forelpn Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thercunder to the extent af

Forelpn Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; (Not
Applicable to the Company during the Audit Year)

{v) Securities Contracts (Regulation) (Stock Fxchanges and ClearingCorporadons) Regulatons, 2012
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Centinuation Sheet Umesh Ved & Associates

(vi) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and FExchange Board of India
Aty 1992 (SEBI Act’):-

() The Seeurities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisiion of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 201 1; (Not Applicable to-the Company during the Audit Year)

(I} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992/ The
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibiton of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015(Not
Applicable to the Company during the Audit Year)

(¢) The Securides and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulatons, 2009 (Not Applicable 1w the Company during the Audit Year)

(d) The Seeurities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Emplovee Benefus) Regulations, 2014

{MNot Applicable (o the Company during the Audit Year)

(¢) The Sceurities and Exchange Board of India {Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;
{Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Year)

(£ The securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars (o an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 reparding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Wot Applicable w the
Company during the Audit Year)

(] The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (Not
Applicable to the Company during the Audit Year)’and

(k) The Securtties and Exchange Board of Indie (Buyback of Securities) Reguladons, 1998; (Net
Applicable to the Company during the Audit Year )

{vii) The Company has identified and confirmed the following laws, as being specifically applicabile 1o the
Company.

1. The Securties Contract (Regulations) Act, 1956

2. The securites and Exchange Board of India Act 1992

3. 'lhe Securities Contracts (Regulation) (Stock Exchanges and Clearing Corporations) Regulatons,
2012

4. Secuntes And Exchange Board Of India (International Financial Services Centrees) Guidelines, 2015

5. Rules, Regulatons, Circulars, Orders, notification and Directives ssued under the above statue to the

extent applicable.
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We have relied on the representation made by the Company, its Officers and on the reports given by
designated professionals for systems and processes formed by the Company to monitor and ensure
compliances ender other applicable Acts, Laws and Repulations to the Company.

During the year under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Aer, Rules, Regulations,

Cundelines, Standards, ete. mennoned ahove.
We further Report That,

The Form AOC ~ 5 requ'u:ed to be filed under the provizions of the companies Act 2013 was filed afrer the
statutory period along with the additional filing fees,

We further report that:

Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with the proper balanee of Direcrors. The changes in
the composition of the Board of Directois that toek place during the vear under review were carried vt m

compliance with the provisions of the Act,

All decisions 1 the Board 5 camied through, while the dissenting members’ views, if any, are captored and

recorded as part of the minutes,

Adeguate notice is given o all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda
were sent at least seven days in advance exvgp in some initance wherein the shorter notice was consented by the
Dirccrors, and a system exists for secking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda
irems before the meedng and for meaningful participation at the meeting,

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes i the company  comimensurate
with the size and operations of the company ta monitor and enzure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
repulations and puidelines.

We further report that during the year company has issued 5,00,00,00 shares on right basis having a face
value of Rs 10/- per equity share to NSE Cleaning limited on 29/03/201%.

1{.\]@"

Umesh Ved

Umesh Ved 8 Associates
Company Secretaties
C.P. No.: 2924

F.C.85 Na.: 4411

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 2a\oul 2019

17




D NSE

International
Clearing

ﬂs UMESH VED & ASSOCIATES

Company Secretaries

304, Shoppers Plaza-V, Opp. Municipal Market, C. G. Road, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad - 380 009,
Telefax . () +91 79 26464153, 48904153 * Moblie +91 98250 35998

E mail ; info@umeshvedcs.com, umeshvedcs office@airtelmailin « Website | www.umeshvedes com

To.
The Members,

NSE IFSC CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED,
Unie- 1202, Brigade Intérnational Finaneial Centre 12th Floor,
Bock-14, Road 1€, Zone-1,

GIFT 5ez Gatt Caty,

Gandhinagar G 382355

Char report of even date 18 to be read along with this leter.

L. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company.Cur
responsibility s to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit,

2, We have followed rhe audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
abour the cortectness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to
ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not venfied the correctness and appmprin:ennss of fAnancial records and Books of Accounte of
the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules
and regulations and happenings of events erc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, rt‘gl.tlaﬂﬂm, standards is
the responsibility of management. Our examination was imited ro the verification of procedures on test
basis,

6. The seeretarial Audit report is nerther an assurance as to the future viahility of the company nor of the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

46 \'},ub
Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 2 n\ou| 2019

Umesh Ved

Umesh Ved & Associates
Company Secretaries
C.P. No.: 2924

F.C.S No.: 4411
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of NSE IFSC Clearing Corporation Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of NSE IFSC Clearing
Corporation Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019,
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to the Ind AS
financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “Ind AS Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind
AS”), of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, its loss including other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board Report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
infarmation and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materfally misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard,

rted on 17th June, 2014

ax:+91 12 6672 9777
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind AS Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134 (5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules
issued thereunder. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this Ind AS financial statements. As part of an
audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion oh whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.
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= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure 1", a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(2

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and
the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder;

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019,
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

Continuation Sheet
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f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, we give our
separate report in “Annexure 2";

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

(i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts. Hence,
the question of any material foreseeable losses does not arise;

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No.103523W / W100048

ner
Membership No. 034828

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 24, 2019
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in the
Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of NSE IFSC Clearing Corporation
Limited on the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

()

(i1)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) During the year, the fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the
management and as informed, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable having regard to
the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) The Company does not hold any immovable property. Accordingly, the provisions stated
in paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

As Informed, the Company does not have any inventories. Therefore, the provisions stated
in paragraphs 3(ii)(a), 3(ii)(b) and 3(ii)(c) of the Order are not applicable.

As informed, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained
under Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (iii)(a), 3 (iii)(b) and 3 (iii}(c) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

Based on information and explanation given to us in respect of loans, investments,
guarantees and securities, the Company has not entered into any transactions which fall
under the purview of Section 185 and Section 186 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (iv)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits from the public within the provisions of Section 73 to
Section 76 of the Act and the rules framed there under. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (v) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records for any of the
products of the Company under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act and the rules
framed there under. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities,
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, income tax, goods and service tax,
customs duty, cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to it, however,
there have been slight delay in few cases.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of provident fund, income tax, goods and service tax, customs duty,
cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to it, were outstanding, at the
year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues with
respect to income tax, goods and service tax, customs duty, which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither

obtained any loans or borrowings from financial institutions, banks, or debentures holders.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (viii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

23
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(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

The Company has neither raised money by way of public issue offer nor has obtained any
term loans. Therefore, paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of
fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or
reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such instance by the
management.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no managerial remuneration has
been paid / provided for the period under audit. Hence, the question of requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act does not arise.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, all transactions entered into by
the Company with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and Section 188
of Act, where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial
Statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Therefore, paragraph
3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him during the
year.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not required to
be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

For Haribhakti & Co, LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No. 103523W / W100048

Partner

—o-‘m’eﬁaghip No. 034828

—_—

Sumant Sakhardande

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 24, 2019
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the

Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of NSE IFSC Clearing Corporation Limited
on the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under clause (i) of
sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of NSE IFSC
Clearing Corporation Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of
the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAl"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
.and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
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assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.103523W / W100048

__Paptmer

A% Membership No.034828

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 24, 2019

Continuation Sheet
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MAE IFSC CLEARING CORFORATION LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2019
[Rs in Lakhs)
Particulart R Notes As at 31.03,2019 As at 31.02.2018
ASSETS o
Non-current assets
Froperty, plant and equipment 2 §0.83 19 85
Cther intangible assets 3 a47.05 7228
‘ntangitle sssets under development 3 9.61 4914
Financlal assets
Cher financhal assets
Man-gurrent bank balances 4 138,34
Othars 4 0.45
come tax assets (net} 0.22
Tatal nen-current assets 656.50 141.28
ts - Core Settl Guarantee Fund 5 791.63 689 87
Current assets
Financial assets
- Cash and cash equivalents ) 2,439.79 6,701 82
- Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents ? 4,468.47
Other financial assets -] 22.85 2.00
Other current assets 9 2.02 0.20
Total current agsets T —6:9?3.;3 = _a,}bz'l?_
TOTAL ASSETS B4IL26 753527
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity Share capital 10a 7.500.00 700000
Other Equity 105 , (2,203.43) {1,538 33)
TOTAL EQUITY 5,296.57 5,161 67
Core Settlement Guarantee Fund (Core 5GF} 11 791.63 &89 87
LIABILITIES
Man-current liabllities
Provisigns 12 0.55 013
Current liabilities
Finanoial habllties
Trade payables 13
{i] total gutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
BntErprises -
{:i] tatal qutstanding dues of treditors other than micrg
enterprises and small enterprises 1,156.09 487 6R
Deposits 14 33100 312.28
(ther financial liatalines 15 75.10 842,32
Provisions 16 2.52 2R
Owher current lisbihties 17 66.71 2823
Total current labilities o T 2342.51 L6840
TOFAL LIABILITIES o 313469 2.373.60
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES —_ 843126 7.535.27

Motes refer to above farm an integral part of the Balance sheet

A% per our report of even date attached

Far Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
AN Flrm Registration No. 103523w / w 100048

Sumant Sakhardande
Partner

W

e :ﬁumbai
Liataey @ April 24, 2019

For and gn behalf of the Board of Directors

oA

Samir ¥ Barua
Directar
[ IN:0D211077 §

N’ﬂ—n—'«
Hitin Bhadre
Chief Financial Officer

Plate Mumbai
Date : april 24, 2019

Director
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Vivek Singhvi
Chief Executive DHices

9“”\}9\

Chirag Nagda
Company Secrotary
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NSE {FSC CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019
{Rs in Lakhs)
Particulars Notes 3 For the year For the year
ended 31.03.2019 ended 3103 2018

Income - —
Revenue fram operations
Other income 18 12.94
Total Income - 12,94
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 19 178.17 184.59
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2&3 44.99 2132
Other expenses 20 430.04 B 688.35
Total Expenses 653.20 N 894.26
Profit /[Loss) before tax {640.26) {894.28)
Less : Tax expense

Currgnt tax

Deferrad tax
Total tan expenses
Profit / (Loss) for the period {4) (640.26) 894 26)
Other Comprehansive Income
Items that will he reclassified to profit or loss
Iterns that will not be reclassified to profit or boss
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit {0.13) (1.84)
obligations
Changes in foreign currency translation resarve 325.10 34.3_1
Total Other Comprehensive Income for the period (Net of Taxes) (B) 325.97 3297
Total Comprehensive Income for the perlod (A+B) {314.29) (B&1. 29;11
Earnings per equity share { Face Value Rs.10 each)
- Basic & Dilutad (Rs.) 21 {0.90) {149}
Summary of significant accounting policies 1

Notes refer to above form an integral part of the Statement of Profit & loss

As per our report of even date attached

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Sumant Sakhardande

Part
,‘fﬁﬂrship No.: 034828

Place ; Mumbai
Data . April 24, 2019

For and an behalf of the Board of Directors

Samir K Barua
Director
[ DIN:DD211077 |

Nitin Bhadre
Chief FInancial Officer
Place : Mumbai

Date : April 24, 2019
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Mukesh Agarwal
Director
[ DIN-03054853 ]

\M =
Vivek Singhvi
Chief Executive Officer

Chirag Nagda
Company Secretary
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NSE IFSC CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Equity Share Capital

{ Rs.in Lakhs)

Balance as at (1.04.2018 7.000

changes in equity share capital during the period 500

Balance as at 31.03.2019 7,500

Other Equity {Rs. in Lakhs)
Reserves and Surplus — o

Particulars Retained Earnings Foreign Currency | Other Comprehensive Total

Translation Reserve Income

Balance as at April 1, 2017 (83.36) (165.71) (249.07)

Profit /{Loss] for the Year _[8%4.28) - - (89426}

(ther Comprehensive [ncarme E _ {1.84) 11.84)

Cantribution 1o Core SGF [689.54) _(689.54)

Share issue expoanses (38.43) - t}E_-‘. 3.:'

-a.].anges in Foreign Currency Translation Reserve - 34.81 34.81

through Other Comprehensive Income

Balance as at March 31, 2018 (1,705.59) {130.90) (184 (183833

Balance as at April 1, 2018 (1,705.59) {130.90) (1.84) {1,838.33)

Prafit /(Lossifor the period (640,26} _— (640.26)

Changes in Foreign Currency Translation Reserve » 326,10 326.10

through Other Comprehensive Income

Contribution to Core SGF 190.31) __,'_5_'0: 31_‘|

Share issue EXPENSas (0.50) (0,500

Other Comprehensive Income — 3 - ((.13) : 10.13)

Balance as at March 31, 2019 {2,396.66) 19520 | {1.97) (2,203.43))

As per gur report of even date attached

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 103523W / W 100048

simant Sakhardande

e : Mumbai
Late : April 24, 2019

"
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Samir K Barua
Director
[ DIN:0O211077 ]

ot s
Mitin Bhadre
Chief Financial Officer
Place : Mumbai
Date : April 24, 2019

/@,@@__W;__@;,J/

Mukesh Agarwal
Director
{ DIN:03054853 ]

b

\\L"(/
Vivek Singhvi
Chief Executive Officer

)
L

Chirag Nagda
Company Secretary
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NAE IFSC CLEARING COAPORATION LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

2 Previous period § year's figures have been
classdication f declosure

At per our report of evan dake attached

For Harlzhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Sumant Sakhardande
Partnet
Member

Placa - Mumbai
Date : April 24, 2019
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{Rs.  Lakhi]
Panliculars Far Ihe year For the year
ended 31.03.201% ended 1103 2018
CASH FLOW FRDM DPERATING SLTIVITIES
NET PROFITBEFORE TAX (640.26) {654 26}
Add:  Adusrments foe
Oeprection & amanizaion Expences 4.5 M
Lass on sabe al serap L
Luss an Freed assels written off 6.37
Re-measurement of defined benefits plans 12,13 {184}
Less Adjustments for -
InTeresl income an bank depasiis [1F.94)
OPERATING PROFIT BEFDRE WORKING CAMTAL CHANGES {599.54) lE';'A'-I Ty
Agjustments for .
Proceed of Deposit irom Trading member # applicant 19.41 312 28
Trade Pavables brEal EFEy.
othar lingnaial liabdites (6722} Tl 32
Cither financial assets {8.54)
Other currant assels {1.72) 259
Current Liabilities & Provisians 2873 112
CASH GENERATED FROM DPERATIONS 4347 G
[nract Taees pawd (et of Refunds} {621)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES - Total {4) o 43.25 53539
CASHALOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assers {430.73) (75 29
Procesds ram sale af Fixed Assets (1.7}
e stment in fived depusits. {4.605.81)
miaresl received 015
HET CASH FROM [USED IN] INVESTING ACTIVITIES - Total [B) T 13,075.55 75 28)
CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ALTIVITIES
Proceeds rom lssue of Equity Shares 0000 2,000 00
Share |siue Expenze 0501 (38 43)
Amount transfedred 1o guarantes settlemant fund 150.11) (303 03)
WET CASH FROM (USED IN] FINANCING ACTIVITIES - Tolal (C) 1;19..19 : 1,758 50
Changes on sccount of converslen of balances from functionad 12610 34 81
CUMFENCY 10 PrESENEAtION Currenty
NET INCREASE / ([DECREASE] IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS [A+B+C) 14,212.03] 2,354 D&
CASH AND CARH EQUIVALENTE AT THE BEGINMING QF THE YEAR 6,701.82 4,347 Fh
CASH AND CASM EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR - _2,489.79 =
NET INCREASE / [DECREASE] IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 14,212.03) 2,354.06
Resco on af cash and cash squivalenis as per the cash flow statement
Cash and cash equivalents as par above comprize of the follgwing
Cash and cash equivalenis 1,4R8.79 €30187
Bank cverdrate e
Balances par slatement of cash flows 1,489.7% 6,701.82
Motes to Cash Flow Statement @
1 The abowe Cazh Flow Statement has been piepared under the "Indireet Method” 55 260 outn (he tnd A% - 7 an Stalement of Cash Hlaw
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NSE IFSC CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED
Naotes to financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Backgraund and Summary of significant accounting policles :
Fhe NSE IFSC Clearing Corparation Ltd, {NICCL), a whally awned subsidiary of NSE Clearing Limited [Formerly known as National Securities Clearing Corporation | td
[MSCCLYN, was incorporated in December 2, 2016, It is set up to aperate a clearing corparation as a unit in an International Financial Service Centre {IFSCHin India

The fmancial statements were autharised for issuance by the Company's Board of Directors on April 24, 2018,

Summary of significant accounting policies :
This note provides a list of the significant accaunting policies adopted in the preparation of Indan Accounting Standard (ind 45} finanoal statements [Mind AS
financial staterments”), These policies have been consistently applied to alk the years f perods presented, unless otherwise stated

Bazis of preparation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind A5) under the histarical cost canvention an the accrual basis cxcopt
for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, the provisi of the Companies Act, 2013 ["Act’} (to the exient notificd) The Ind A5 are
prescribed under Seclion 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Amendrnent Rules. Accounting policies
have been consistently applied and are ¢onsistent with those used in the previgus year excapt where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a
revision to an existing accounting standard requires g change in the accounting pohey hitherto in use

[i] Historco! cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on a histarical cost basis, encept for the tollowing.

- certain financial assets and habilities that is measured at fair value, and
- defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value

Fair walue 13 the price that would be received to sell an asset o pald to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date, regardless of whether that price is directly abservable or estimated using another valuation technigue. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Company takes inte atcount 1he charackenstics of the asset or lability which market participants would take into account when pricing the asset or liability ar the
measurement date

In addition, for financizl reperting purposes, fair value measurements are categonsed into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs 1o the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as fallows:

Level 1 inputs are guoted prices (unadjusted] In active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the Measurement date;
Level 2 Inputs are inputs, other than quated prices incluged within Level 1, that are observable far the asser or liabihty, either directly or indirectly; and
Level 3 inputs are unobservable ingurts for the assaet ar lability.

Fereign currency translation and transactions

i} Functionol ond presemtation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the peimary 2condmic enviranment in which the entity operates
I"the funchional currency’). The functional currency of the Company is USE:.

The francial statements are presented in Indian currency [INR), which is the Company's presentation currency

(i} Tronsoctions and boloaces

Fareign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates a1 the dates of the transactions. Fareign exchange gans and
ivsses resulting from the settlemnent of such transactions and fram the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the period
end exchange rates are recognised In Statement of profit or lass,

Non-rnonetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determiped,
Translation differences on assets and llabilites carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair valug gain or foss. For example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets and liabilities such as equity instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in Statement of profit or loss as part of the far
value gain ar loss and translation differences on non-manetary assets such as equity investments classified as FVOO) are recognised i gther comprehens e
neome,

{ii) Translation to the presantatian currency

The financial statements are translated from functional currency to presentation ¢urrency by using the following pracedures:

[a} assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presenied {ie. including cornparatives] shall be translated at the closing rate at the date of thar balance cheet;

{b) income and gxpenses for each statement of profit and loss presented (ie. including comparatives) shall be translated at exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions; and

{c} all resulting exchange differences shail be recognised in ather comprehensive incomea,

Revenue recagnition
Revenue s measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of allowances, incentives, taxes and
amounts collected an behalf of third parties,

The Company recognises revenue when the amaunt of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow ta the entity and
speclfic criteria have been met for each of the Company's activities as desenbed below. The Company bases its estimates on historcal results, 2King s
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement

Revenue is recogrised in the period when the service is provided as per arrangements/agreamants with the custamers. The sources of revenue are:

lil Clearing and Settlement charges, IT & support charges and processing changes are recagniend on aceroal basis as and when the services are endered

{ii] Incomne excludes applicable taxes and ather levies
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in respect of members who have been declared as defaulters by the Company all amounts [dues) remairung to be recovered, net of available security and
insuiance cover avaitable if any, till the date of being declared as defaulters are written off as bad debts, All subseguent recoveries are accounted when received
Penal charges in respect of shortages due from the respective member is recognised in Statement profic and loss as part of other revenue to the extenl such
charges are recoverable in the perind of deciaration of default.

Insurance ctaims are accounted on accrual basis when the claims become due and payable.

Incame taxes
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable ncome tax rate adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable (o temporary diflerences and to unused tax losses, If any,

The current income tax charge is caltulated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting pericd. Management
perindically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations n which applicable tax regulation '+ subject W interpretation. |t establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the 1ax authorites,

Deferred incame tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet appreach, on deductible and tazable temporary differences ansing between the tax bases of assers
and habilities and their carrying amaounts in the finangial statements, Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and faws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting pericd and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tay liability is settied

Deferred incame 1ax asset are recognited ta the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temparary differences,
and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses ¢an he utilized. Deferced income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary
differences,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and are racognised anly if itis probable that future raxable amounts
will be available ta utilise those temporary differences and losses,

Deferred tas assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and 1ax bases of investments in subsidiaries, assoagtes and
interest in joint arrangements where it is not grobabfe that the differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will not be available against
which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances
relate to the same taxation autharity, Curcent tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a |egally enforceable right to offset and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the hiabillty simultaneously

Cureant and deferred tax is recogmsed in Statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other compr income or

directly in equity. In this case, the tax is alsa recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively

Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently T events or changes
in crcumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for Impairment whenever events of changes w gircumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable An impairment 1955 is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds Hs recoverable amount
The recoverable amagunt is the higher of an asset’s farr value less costs of disposal and value in use. Far the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are gronped
at the lowest levels for which there are separately identiflable cash mflows which are largely independent af the cash inflows from ather assets or groups ol assets
I¢ash-generating units} Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reparting pericd

Cash Flow Statements & Cash and cash equivalents

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / {loss) before extraordinary rtems and tax is adjusted for the effecis of transactions of non
cash nature and any deferrals ar aceruats of past or fulure cash receipts or payments. The cash Fows from operating, investing and financing actiwities of the
Company are segregated based on the available inlormation.

Cash and Cash equivalents includes cash on hand, depasits held at call with financial institutons, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertlble to known armounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value These
do notinclude bank balances earmarked/restricted for specific purposes,

Trade receivables
Trade recelvables are recognised intially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the eMfectrve interest methad, less provision lor
imgairment.

Imvestments and other financial assets

i) Clessification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the followIng measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value feither through other comprehensive income, or through prefit or loss), and
- those measurad at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the enbity's business madel for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at falr value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit o loss or other camprehensive income, Far investments in delbt instruments,
this will Jepend en the bugsiness model in which the investment is held. For investments In gguiby instrurments, this will depend on whether the Campany has
made an |rrevocable election ar the mime of initial recognition 1o account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income. The
Company 1eclasaifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

{if)  Measurerment
At imtial recognition, the Company measures a finandial asset at its fair value plus, o the rase of a finandial asset not at fair value thrgugh profit or 1oss,
transaclion ¢osts that are directly atteibutable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transacthon costs of financial assets carried at fair value thraugh proft or
loss are eapensed in profil or loss,

Detit instruments

Subsequent measwemant of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model for managing the asset and the cath flow characteris
There are three measurement categoriss intg whach the campany dassifies its debt instruments:
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Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flews where those cash flows represent salely payments of pringipal and imgrest arg
measured at amprtised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment thal is subseguently measurad at amortized tost and 15 not part af a hedging relationship is
recogrised in profit of loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance incame using the effective
interest rate method,

Fair value gh othes comprehensive income {FYOCI): Assets that are held for callection of contractual rash flows and for selling the financial assers, where the
assets’ cash flows reprasent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comgrehenswe mcome [FYOCL). Movemnents in the
carrying amount are taken through OC), eacept for the recognition of impairment gaing of logses, Interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and lozses whith arg
recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset |s derecognised, the curmulative gain or loss préviously recognised in OC1 15 reclassified from equity to profit
or loss and recogmsed in other gains/ [losses). Interest incorme from these financal assets i included in other income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value thraugh profit ar loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amertised cost or FYOCI are measured at fair value through profit ar less. & gain or loss o0
a debt Iny that is subsequently measured at far value through proflt or loss is recognised in profit or loss and presented net in the statement of profit and
Iass within other gains/{losses] in the period in which it arises. Interest incoma from these financial assets is included in other income.

Equity vestments forher than invesements in ies, gssoclates and joint

The Company subsequently measuras all eguity investments at fair value. Where the Cornpany's management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on
equity mvestments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassificaton of fair value gains and losses to profit ar loss, Dividends fram such
wvestments cantinue to be recagnised in profit or Ioss as other income when the Company's right te receive payments is established

Changes in the fair value of financial assets a fair valye through profit or loss are recognised in other ganf [lesses) in the statement of profitand loss Imparment
losses {and reversal ol impairment locses) on equity investments measured at FYQC! are not reperted separately frarm other changes in far value,

Equity tnvestments {in subsidiones, assaciales and joint venture)

Irvestrments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture are carried at cosl less accumulated impairment lasses, if any. Where anoindication of impairment exists,
the carrying amount of the invesirment is assessed and wnitten down immediately to its recoverable amount. The accounting polley an Impavment of non-financial
assats 15 disclosed m Note e. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venwire, the difference betweaen net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amaunts are recognized in the statement of profit and loss

{iit Impairment of financiol assets
The Company assesses on a farward loaking basls the expected credit Iosses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost and FYOC| debt instruments The
impairment methodoiogy applied depends an whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk

For trade raceivables only, the Company applles the simplifled approach permitted by Ind A% 109, which requires expertted Lfetime losses o be recogrised from
inetial recognition of the receivables.

{iv} De-recogaition of financial assers
A financial asset is oe-recognised only when

- The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash Nows from the financial asset or
- retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligatign 10 pay the cash
flows bt one o mMore recipents

Where the company has transferred an asset, it evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all nisks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. 10 such
cases, the finantial asset is de-recognised, Where the company has not transferred subsrantially all riske and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the
financial asset Is not de-recognlsed,

Where the Company has neither transierred a linancial asset nos retaing substantially all nsks and rewards of ownecship of the financial asset, the financial asset is
de-recognised if the Company has nat retaned contrel of the financial asset, Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be
recogmsed to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset,

{v) incorme recogmtion
Imerest incame

Inerest incame from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective neerest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the linancial assets Lo the grass carrying amaunt of a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate,
the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contracival terms of the financial instrument but does nol consider the expected cradit
igsses,

Ordends
Dividends are recognised in Statement of profit and loss onky when the right to receive payment is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the dividend will liow to the Company, and the amount of the dividend can be reliably measured.

Financial liabilities

fi}  Classification os debt or equity
Financial hiabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual srrangements entered inte and the
definrions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

fri}  tritiof recogrition pad mea
Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the rantractual provisions of the instrument. hinanoal habilities are ifitally measured al
the ampertised cost unless at inlthal recogrmman, they are chassified as fair value through profit and loss
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Pravisions
Prawisions lor legal claims and discountsfincentives are recognised when the Company has a present legal or ¢constructive obligation as a result of past events, itis

prabable that an outflow of rescurces will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for fulure

operating losses.

At the end of each reporting period, prowisions are measured at the present value of management’s best eshmate of the empenditure required to settle the
present obligation at a future date. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the liability, The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Contingent Liahilities and contingent assets

Contingent lishilities are disclosed in notes when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed anly by the
oCourrende of non-gocurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the controt of the Company or a present obhgaton that arizes from past
events where it s either not prabable that an cutflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannet be made.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements If the inflow of econarmic banefits is probable, then it is disclosed in the financial staternants.

Contributed equity
Equity shares are classified as eguity.
tncremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares ar options are shawn in aquity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Dividends
Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared including dividend distribution tax, bewng appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion of
the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed atk the end of the reporting period.

Earnings per share

{i}  Basic earnings per shore
Rasic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
- the proht attributable to owners of the company
by the weighted average number of aquity shares outstanding during the linanciat year, adjusted far banus elements in equity shares issued during the year

{ii} Difuted Earnings per shore
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take intg account:

- the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and
- the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding a¢suming the conversion of all
dilutive potential gauity shares.

Operating Lease

Leases of property, plant and equiptment and land where the company, as lessee, has substantially received all the risks and rewards of nwnership are classified as
finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s inception at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included In other financial habilities. Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the statament of profit and loss over the lease period 50 as to produce a constant penodic rate of inlerest
on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred 10 the Company as |essee are classified as operating leases,
Payments made under aperating leases {net of any incentives received from the lessor} are charged to statemant of profit and loss on 3 straight-line basis over the
periad of the iease unless the payments are strectured to increase in line with expected general inflation to campensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost
NCrEases.

Employee Benefits

{i] Provident Fund: The company registered with Regional Provident Fund Office, Ahmedabad, and both the employee and the employer make monthly
contribution equal to 12% of the employee’s basic salary respectively.

(i} Superannuation: Superannuation benefits are covered by graup policies with the Life nsurance Corparation of India maintained by the ultimate Holding
Company. The contribution payable for the year is charged to revenue There are no other abligatrons other than the annual contribution payabie

(iti) Gratuity: The ultimate Holding Company has malntaired a Graup Gratuity Cum Life Assurance Scheme with the Life insurance Corporatron of India (LIC)
towards which It annually contributes a sum determined by LIC. Provisions ace made for the defined benefit with respect to gratuity liability based on the present
value of defined benefit obligation as reduced by the fair value of plan assets as per the actuarial valuation calculation. The present value is calculated using the
projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains or losses ara recognized in full in the other comprehensive income for the period in which they occur,

{iv} Leave Encashment : Liability on account of Leave encashrment is provided based on Actuarial Valuation ar Balance Sheet date using the projacted unit credit
method.

{v) Short term emplayee benefits are charged to revenus in the year in which the related service is rendered.,
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Recent accounting pronouncements

{i} Ind AS 116 Leases:

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has noufied Ind AS 116, Leases. Ind AS 116 will replace the existing leases Standard, Ind AS 17 Leases, and
related Interpretations. The Standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract
i.e., the lessee and the lessor. Ind AS 116 intraduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for all teases with a
term of more than twelve months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. Currently, operating lease expenses are charged to the statement of Profit & Loss,
The Standard also contains enhanced disclosure requirements for lessees. Ind AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in Ind AS 17

The affective date for adoption of Ind AS 116 is annual periods beginning an ar after April 1, 2019, The standard permits two possible methods of transition:
= Full retrospective — Retrospectively to each prior period presented applying Ind AS B Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

+ Modified retrospective — Retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the Standard recognized at the date of initial application,

Under modified retrospective approach, the lessee records the lease liability as the prasent value of the remaining lease payments, discounted at the incremental
borrowing rate and the right of use asset either as:

= Its carrying amount as il the standard had been applied since the commencement date, but discounted at lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of
initial application or

* An amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments related to that lease recognized under Ingd AS 17
immediately before the date of initial application,

Certain practical expedents are available under both the methods.

On completion of evaluation of the effect of adoption of ind AS 116, the Company is proposing to use the ‘Modified Retrospective Approach” for transitioning to
Ind AS 116, and take the cumulative adiustment to retained earnings, on the date of initlal application (April 1, 2015). Accordingly, comparatives far the year
ended March 31, 2019 wll not be retrospectively adjusted. The Company has elected certain available practical expedients on transitipn.

The Company is currently evaluating the effect of this amendment on the financial statements,
{il} Ind A5 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tan Treatments:

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 12 Appendix €, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments which is to be applied while
perforrming the determmation of taxable profit {or loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax
treatments under Ind AS 12. According to the appendix, companies need to determine the probability of the relevant tax authority accepting each tax treatment,
or group of tax treatments, that the companies have used or plan to use in their incorne tax fillng which has to be considered to compute the most likely amount
of the expected value of the tax treatment when determining taxable profit {tax Joss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates,

The standard permits two passible methods of transition - i} Full retrospective approach = Under this approach, Appendix C will be applied retrospectively to each
prior reparting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, withgut using hindsight and i)
Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying Appendix C recognized by adjusting equity on initial application, without adjusting comparatives.

The effective date for adoption of Ind A3 12 Appendix C 15 annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019, The Company will adopt the standard on April 1,
2019 and has decided 1o adjust the cumulative effect in equity on the date of initial application i.e. April 1, 2019 without adjusting comparatives.

The Company is currently evaluating the effect of this amendment on the financial statements.

[iii} Amendment ko ind AS 12 - Incomne taxes:

On March 30, 2015, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to the guidance in Ind AS 12, ‘tcome Taxes’, in connection with accounting for dividend
distribution taxes.

The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognise the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income ar egquity
according to where the entity originally recognised those past transactions or events.

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after Agril 1, 2019. The Company does not have any impact on account of this
amendment.
{iv) Asnendment to Ind AS 19 - plan amendment, curtailment or settlement:

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corparate Affairs issued amendments ta Ind AS 19, ‘Employee Benefits’, in cannertion with accounting for plan amendments,
curtallments and settlements, The amendments require an entity:

* to use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the period after a plan amendment, curtsilment or
settlement; and

* to recognise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss an settlement, any reduction in a surplus, even if that surplus was not previoushy
recognised because of the impact of the asset ceiling,

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1, 201$. The Company does ngt have any Impact on account of this
amendment.
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NSE IFSC CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements For the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 2 : Property, plant and equipment

Rs. in Lakhs
Office Electrical Furniture and TOTAL Capital Work In
equipments installations fixtures Progress
Gross carrying amount
Opening as at 01.04.2017 - - - 16 06
Additions 1.30 13.62 7.55 22.47 6.41
Disposals
Transfers z x = 122.47)
Closing gross carying amount 1.30 13.62 7.55 22.47
Accurnulated depreciation
Opening as at 01.04.2017 -
Depreciation charge during the period 0.27 1.12 1.24 262
Dizsposals - : = =
Closing accumulated depreciation 0.27 1.12 1.24 2.62 <
Net carrying amount as at 31.03.2018 1.03 12.50 6.31 19.85 5
Gross carrying amount
Opening as at §1.04.2018 1.30 13.62 7.55 2247
Additions 14.02 - 46.63 60.65
Disposals {1.30) {3.75} (8.63) {13.69)
Transfers - - - -
Closing gross carrying amount 14.02 9.87 45.54 69.43
Accumulated depreciation - - -
Opening as at 01.04.2018 0.27 1.12 1.24 2.62
Depraciation charge during the period 2,27 1.36 7.23 10.87
Disposals {0.58) (0.59) {3.72) (4.30)
Llosing accumulated depreciation 195 189 475 8.60
| ‘Net carrying amount as at 31,03.2019 12.07 7.97 a0.79 60.83 B

&
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NSE IFSC CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements For the year ended March 31,_ 2019

Note 3 : Other intangible assets

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Clearing and Intangible Assets under TOTAL
Settlement System development

Gross carrying amount
Opening as at 01.04.2017 - 71.24 71.24
Additions _ 50.98 74.97 165.95
Disposals {6.09) {6.09)
Transfers - {90.98) {90.98}
Closing gross carrying amount 90.98 49.14 140.12
Accumulated amertisation
Opening as at 01.04.2017 - -
Amortisation charge during the period - 18.70 - 18.70
Disposals : : 5 -
Closing accumulated amortisation ’ 18.70 - 18.70
Net carrying amount as at 31.03.2018 72.29 49.14 121.43
Gross carrying amount
QOpening as at 01.04.2018 90.98 49.14 140.12
Additions 408.88 9.61 418.49
Disposals - (49.14) (49.14)
Transfers . . -
Closing gross carrying amount 499.87 9.61 509.48
Accumuiated amortisation - -
Opening as at 01.04.2018 18.70 = 18.70
Amortisation charge during the period ’ 34.12 - 34.12
Disposals - -
Closing accumulated amortisation 52.82 - 52.82
Net carrying amount as at 31.03.2019 - 447.05 9.61 456.66

&
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i Other financial assets |[non-turrent) As a1 31.03.2019 Asat 31.03.2018
AR5 in Lakhns)

Non Current bank balances

Fixed daposits with maturity for more than 12 months 138.34
138.34
Others
Interest Accrued on Bank Deposits .45 -
.45
Tatal 138.79 R e
| tment -Core Setul G Fund {Refer Hote As at 31.03.2019 Asat 31.03.2018
No. 11)
[Rs. in Lakhs ) S
Current accounts with Bank 0.35 BE9.57
Fixed Deposits with Bank 783.71
Accrued interest on C3GF FD 7.57
Total 791.63 GES.E7
f Cash and cash equivalents As at 31.03.2019 As at 31.03 201K
|Rs. in Lakhs }
Balances with banks :
O current accounts . 248879 5,?01_32
Total i 2.485.79 B, 701 82

Bank balances other than Cash and Cash equivalents

Fixed deposits with maturity for less than 12 manths 4,488.47

Total 4,468.47
B Other financial assets (Current) As at 31.03.2019 Asat 21032018

[Rs. in Lakhs ) )

Others

Security deposit for ubities and premises 10.51 200

Interest Accrued on Bank Depasits 12.34

Tetal 22.85 2.00
4 Other Current Assets As at 31.03.2q19 A% at 31.03.2018

{Rs. in Lakhs | =:

Prepaid Expenses - 0.30

Cther Advance recoverable .15

Scrap Sale recewvabiles 1.15

Balance with Gavernment Authorities 0.68

Total 2.02 4.30
o a) Share Capital As at 31.03.2019 Asat 3103 2018

(Rs. In Lakhs |
Authorised
10,00,00,000 (Previous year: 10,00,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10 aach 10, 00400 10.000.00
10,000.00 10, 00000

Issyed, Subscribed and Paid-up

7.50.00,000 (Previaus year: 7,00,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each 7.500.00 700000
Total 7.500.00 1,006 30
Equity Shares

The Company has anly one class of equity shares having & par value of Rs.10/~ per share. Each halder of equity shares |s entitled to one vole per share The
dnadend proposed by the Board af Director is subject to the approval of the shareholder in the ensuing Annual General Meeting except in the case of intarim
dividend,

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holdec of equity shares will be entitled to recave remaining assets of the company, alter distribution of all
preferestial amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholder,

shares in respect of each class i the company held by its helding company or its ultimate holding company In¢luding sharas held bv or b at 1Idl’lt'5 or
assaciates of the holding company or the ultimate holding company in aggregate:

<«
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Equity Shares :
" Nameof the Company T asazueaas As at 3103 2018
"~ No. of Shares ] % holding No. of Shares 'mhulding__ -
NSE Clearing Ltd {Formerly known as National Securities | 7.50,00,000 100.00% 7,00,00,000 100 00%
Clearing Corperation Limited) & its nominees B |
I Total )] 100.00% 7,00,00,00 100 00%
Details of £quity Sharehalder holding more than 5% share in the Company [No. of Shares):
Mame of the Company As at 31.03.2019 l As i{%.(}}lﬂls
No. of Shares % holding | o, of Shares I % holding
NSE Clearing Ltd {Formerly kngwn as Mational Securities 7,50,00,000 100.00% 7,00,00,008 100 00
Clearing Corporation Limited) & its nominess o
Total 7,50,00,000 100.00% 2,00,00,000 o _].OD D0%

Aggregate number of bonus shares issued during the period of five vears immediately preceding the reporting date by way of tonus, shares ssued fo
consideration other than cash & shares bought back - Mil

Reconciliation of number of shares

31032008 | 31032018

Me. of Shares Mo. of Shares
o] ding at the beginning of the Year 7,00,00,00:0 5,00,00,000
Issued during the Year S0,00,000 2,00,00,000
Qutstanding at the and of the Year 7,50,00,000 7.00,00,000

Company has not reserved any shares for issue under aptions and contract or commitments for sale of shares or disinvestmants

i h) Other Equity i Rs. In Lakhs)
Resarves and Surplusg

Pa_r__ticyla_rs _ B Retained Earnings Forelgn Currency Other Comprehensive Total |
Balance as at 01.04.2018 {1,705.58) {130.90) 11 84} 11,838.33)
Profit flLossifor the period  ganasl| | o {640 26
Changes in Foreign Currency Translation feserve through S 32610 326 10
‘Other Comprehensive Incorme B - - |
contribution to Core SGF [50.31) - (50.31)|
Share 1ssue expenses [0 500 - [n.500)
Other Comprehensive Income T - = [0 13} B - '['0.13.J
Balance 2 at 31,03.2019 {2,396.66)  aes20  i9n| '{iﬁi;iu‘

11 SEBI vide circular no. SEBIYHO/MARD/DSAS CIR § P/2016/125 dated Movember 28, 2016 has issued norms for set up of fund and minimum corpus of fund to

guarantes the settlement of trades executed in the stock exchangas in IFSC,

Details of Core SGF are as follows

As ot 31.03.2019 Asat31032015
[Rs. in Lakhs }
Company s Own contribution™ 782,13 559,55
Penalty collected from members 1.94 0.32
Accrued interast on CSGF FQ 7.56 -
Total ) 791.63 689,87

“Company’s own contribution includes contributions of Rs. 50.32 Lakhs made duing cwirent year 2018-1% and balance increase is on account of CUrrency

fluctuation.
As at 31.03.2019 Asat 3103.2018
12 Provision {Non Current) (Rs. in Lakhs }
Employes benefits ablig
Pravision for Gratuity 0.55 0.33
Totat 0.55 033
13 Trade Payable As 3t 31.03.2019 g at 31.03.2018
{Rs_in Lakhs )
Trade Payable tao Micro and Small Enterprises - B T =
Trade Payable to other than Micro and Small Enterprises 492.94 95,72
Trade Payable to Related Party (Refer Note Mo, 26} 673.15 3%0.96
Total ] 116609 48762
Payable to Related Party
Nationai Stack Exchange of India Limited 150.57 12367
N5E Clearing Ltd {formerly known as National Securities 423,30 235,64
Chearing Corporation Limited)
NSE IF5CLTD 46.83 L]
WSEIT LID 42.35 25,32
Total §73.15 390,96
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14

15

16

17

12

20

Deposits {Unsecured- Current)

Security Deposit Irom Cleanng Marnbers
Total

Other Financial Liabilities (Current)
Margins From Members

Other liabilities
Total

Provision {Current)

Provisions for Leave encashmeant

Rrovision for Gratuity

Provision far variable pay and other allowances
Total

Other Current liabilities

Statutary Dues Payable
Total
Other Income

Interest income on bank depasits

Employee benefits

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other fund
Staff welfare Expenditure

Total

Other expenses

Application Feas

Inauguralion Sharing

Fayment to auditor |Refer note below)
Professional Fees

Rent - Cammercial Premises

Repairs & Maintenance On Computer systems
Repairs & Maintenance - Building
Software axpenses

Elactnicity expenses

Director Sitting Fees

Travelling Expense

Loss on sale of scrap

Laoss on fived assets written off

Qther Expenses

Total

MNate :

Payment to Auditor

As Auditor

Audht Feas

In other Capacity
Certification Matters
Cyber Security Audit Fees
Total

40

As at 31.03.2019

As at 31.03.2018

{Rs. in Lakhs }
3203 31228
332.09 31228

As at 31.03.2019

Asat 31.03.2018

{Rs. In Lakhs )

774.72 34232
0.38

775.10 842,32

As at 31.03.2019

As Al 31.03. 2018

|Rs. in Lakhs }
0.44 0.41
0.00 0.00
2,08 248
2.52 B 289

As at 31.03.2015

As at 31032018

{Rs. in Lakhs )
6671 38.23
66.71 38.23
For the year ) Far the year
ended 31.03.201% ended 31.03.2018
{Rs. in Lakhs |
12.94
12.94 -

For the year
ended 31.03.201%

Far the year

ended 31.03.2018

|Rs. in Lakhs |
170.23 170.63
4.85 5.18
3.09 8.78
178.17 184.5%
Far the year For the year
ended 31.03.201% endad 31.03. 2018
{Rs. in Lakhs }
0.10 14.17
- 69.25
3.93 1.35
17.33 6 B0
14.81 13,27
257.62 118.42
5.19 4.24
83.89 418.03
10.37 7.65
2.51 0.50
1%.86 29.24
2.33
6.37
5.73 5.42
430.04 688.35
1.52 120
3.65 0.15
1.76
3.93
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Eainings per share
Basic eamings per share Jne compuied by dividing profit or loss attribytable (o equiy shareholdeds af the Company by the weightad dverage aumbar of squily
sharas outstanding during the penod The Company did not have any potentally diulive secunities in any of the periods presented

Barticulary Year ended 31032015 i Year gnded 31 04 H14

Profit atinbutable to The squity holders af Ehe compd iy s
m calculating bisic sarmings per share and oiluted earnings

lger share — —
Proiit Before Tax R (640.26)) (854 26
Jaronabove D e S T
Frofit fa the pericd {Rs i Lakhs | 1640, 26) ___IQE“_E
‘Weighted sverage number of 2guity sha res used as the £.10.41,09 €,01,51,781
[denominator in caiculating bask snd diluted earnings per
sharg

ger aqulty share (Basic and diiutad) {Rg) T (0.50) fl-ﬂ;d

The Company dows not have any outstanding diluflve porenrial wquiry shares {onsequently, the base and diluted carning per shaie of thy Company remain the
same

Laasa - Operating Lease

The Company has taken certain premises an operating kaw

[Particulars [¥ear ended 3109, 2019

—
Paid during the Year

[ et Later than one year o ) 10,43 |
Later than one yeat and not later thian five years 653 |
[ater than five years o » 13683 | B
Total Lease Payment ] - 207.80 13.97

Deputed Parsonsl Cost
Salarees, Wages B Allowances alse includes the deputabien eapenies i rispect of the employees of National Ste«k Edchange al india |imited (N3EIL] and NS¢
Clearing Limited {Farmerly knowm a3 National Securities Cleanng Corporation Linited)

Dischasure unded Ind A% 18 on Employee Benehits nodliied under Aule 7 of the Companies (accounts) kyles, 1015

Detfined Contribution Plsn :

Frayidgnt Fund: Company has contributed Ry 831 Lakhs {PY Rs 017 Lakhs} towands Provident Fund during the yesr anded March 31, 2019 to Emphsies
Fravident Fund Drganisation

Defined Bynalir Pinn :
The Company aifers i1z emplayees defined-haneli plans in the form af a Bratuity shems as per Lhe applcable stalute. Benefil: under the defined benefil plans
are typically based on years of service and the 1! . ion | yi diztely belore 1
Balance Sheet {Rs, in Lakhs )
The amounts rm{nin; in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over
the yeer are a3 follews:

= Particulars Coment Year Previous Year |
| LMY 3103 2018
Luabnlity al lha baginning of the year 0.3 -
Inlrrest cost - | 0ol
Cuirent Service Com LEN 015
Liaklity Trensfarred -
Benefits Pakl ) B B
Bevuarial {Gains)/Loszes on Opligationt - Du to Change in
[ramnara ol ¢ i B 5 |
Actuarial (Galns/Losses oo Obigations - Due te Change in 01 (02
Financial Assumplions |
Actuarial [Gaing|fLusses on Obligations  Due ro Lrperlents 10 14] 019
Llability ai tha ¢nd of the year 0.55 0.33

The amaurts recogribed In the badance sheet and the movernents n thit fair value of plan assels aver I yasr |
an b Follows:

" Previows rear
11.03.3018 |

Farbculars Eurrent Year

31.03.201%

I!Iir_\ulno at pl_an:;;'el-:_i_'al the h_:_glr}nlng of 1he year
nierest lncome.

Expected returm on plan asseis
ontnirigns
Trangier fram other company

Benehis paid

Actisarial {Gane)f| dsses on Obligations - Due ta Change in :
Fair Valug of plon wsvets at the end of the year -

.“" rel linbility divclozed abaove relates o funded plank are a5 follows:
Particulars Current Year
| 31.03.2085

Previows ear
31.03 2018

Fair wabue of plan assets as at the end of the yisr

Liakility as at ihe end of the year [ (D55 [LEET

Het (liahillry} / 2sse) [ 10.55) 1033

Salance Shiel Reconciliation

Paniculacs Previows Year

EARERTL)

Lurrent Tear
aL.03.201%

Qpan|ng fwt Liability 033

Cdpenses Recagnized in Statement of Praofit or Loss 035

Eapanses fincome) Recognized in DF1 (¢ 13)

Feat {LiahilibghAsset Transder

|Emplayers Contnbution

Amaunt recognited in The Balance Sheet D55
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Statement of Profit & Loss

{Rsin lakhs]

Met interest Cost for Curent Period

Particulars Current Year Frevious Year
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
nteresl Cast 003 0.
Interest Income
Net Interest Cost for Current Periad 0.03 041
'E;ﬁ_en_ses recognised in the Stat t of Profit & Loss
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
31.03.201% 3103 2018
Current Service cost 0.32 18
Met Interast Cost 0.03 0.01
IEKEISES recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss 035 0.16
E recognised in the Other Camprehensive income
Particulars Current Year Previgus Year
31.03.201% 31.03.2011
Expected return on plan assets g
Actuarial {(3ain) or Less 10.13) 017
Net [Income|/Expense far the Period Recognized In 041 10.13} 0.17

Fair value of plan assets at the Balance Sheet Date for defined benefit obligations

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
41.03.201% 31.03.2018
Insurer Managed Funds
Total - -
Sensitivity Analysls
Particulars Current Year Freviaus Year
31.03.201% 21.03.2018
Projected Benefit Qbligation on Current Assumptions .55 033
[helta Ellecy of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting {0.05) 10.03)
Delta Etfect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting 0.as 004
Delta Effecr of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase a8 003
Detta Cffect of -1% Change i Rate of Salary Increase {0.0%) [Q 03}
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employes Turngver 10.02) {0.01)
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Emplayee Turnover ooz 0.1
Significant actuarial p are as foll
Particulars Current Year Frevious Year
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Disceunt Rate 7.48% 7.68%
Rate of Return on Plan Assets MN.A MNA.
Salary Fscalation B.00% 8.00%
attrition Rate 12.00% 12 00%
Maturity Analysis of Projected Benefit Dhligation: From the fund IRs in lakhs)
Pr_ujeclcd Benefits payable in Future ¥ears fram the Reporting 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Dare
15t Follpwing Year .00 .00
2nd Fullowing Year 0.00 0.00
ard Fellowing Year 0,04 0.00
Ath Following Year 0.07 0.04
5th Following Year 0.07 0,05
Sum of Years 6 to 10 .31 0.21

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the interaal reporting provided ta the Chief Operating Decision Maker {"CODM"] of the Company.
The CODM, whe is respensible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the aperating segments, has been identified as the CEO af the Company. The
Campany operates only in one Business Segment i.e. operations comprise of only facihtating Clearing & Settlenent in securities and the activities incigental
therets within india or global, hence does not have any reportable Segonents as per Indisn Accounting Standard 108 "Operating Segments”.
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% Related Party
m rampliange with Ind A% 24 - “Related Party Disclosures™, as notidled urder Bule 3 of the Conpankes (indian scccuntiog Slandards) Rukes, 2015
and Fuliy réquined dise are givenn the lable below.

Naries of the redated pariles and related pany relatlonship
&r.No. | Related Parly
1 |National Stock wf India Limibteds
2 WEE Clearing Limlted {Formerhy kivawn as Natkanal $ecurities Cleanng
Corporathon Limited

__ Wature of Relalionship
famate Holding Company
olding Company

3 |NSE IFSC Limited 3 _|subndiary of Ulmate Hoiding company
4 |NSET Limited (Formerly NSET Limuted) == e Subsidhary of Hold g Company
& |NSOL Database Management Limired Uirimate Holding Company's Associate's
Subdidiary
5 |NSE Data & Anabytacs Limuted {Formarly kngwn as Dotr (ntematipnal Holding comparmy 5 Fellow Subsiiary's
Limined] __{Subsidiary Company }
BE MEE Irdices Lirnit4d {Farmerky known as inda inden Services & Products Melding company s Fellow Subssdiany's
L] fwbaidiary Company
& |MSE Infotech Serviies Lirmited = e [ Modding company s Fellow Sy bsidiary's
fwbsidiary Company
[ |wsear qusime o "~ |Hottng company ¢ Fellow Subaidiary +
SubsicHary Company |
| 10 |NSE Academy Limited {Formerly known as NSE Educanion Facilities Ulvimate Hokding company Subsidiarys |
| Limited| Subyzidizry Company
|15 |NS Foundation o  |subsidiary of Ulkimate Holding company
[T12 |Natianal Sacurities Deposiary Limited s ) Ultimate Holding Company’s Associate
L3 [#Es feoor Shll Council of India . = Liftirtiate Hding Lompany's Assocate
|14 [Power Exchange India Limited Associste of Subswdiary of Ulmate Holding —l
| COmMpBnY |
15 |MSOLe-G nfl ture Limited (f y KNCWN A% NATInAL - . Associate af Subsidiary of Ultimate Holding
Secyrites B ¢ himitge] S ompams ]
1h Markel SipUlied India Limeted {Farmedy known as INeS "r'uim_nlogne; Arsoctate af Subsidiary of Ultimate Holdirg
Limmited) N o company
17 |Computer Age Management Servces Private Limited Asgociate of Swbsdiary of Ullimate Holding
- campany
1B |Receivables Exchange OF dndia Limited Asagciate of Su-bsldiar\.' of Ultimate Holdng
company
19 | Mums Networks S substdiary of Fellow subsadhary of hokjing
company"s Subsidiary
It Prof famu K Barug i _ . ) LI | Pertar net
2 M Mukesh agaresl — ey Managerial Parsonnel ]
13 | M1, Natarajan kamasamy iy Managerial Fersannel ]
23 | Mranikel Bhanu - Chel Cewcutive Offecer uplo fanuary 31, }14 Vey Managerial Personnel

¥l |Mr Wivel Singhw « Chief Executive Gfflcer weeF lanuary 22, 2015 fiey Managarial Fersonne| =,

o [Rs. in Lakhs |
Hame of the Related Pary Nature of Transactions Far Perlad ¢nded For Peugd andea |
) N 31.03.2018 3104 2HE .,
HEE Clearing Lifnited {Formerly known as Wational Centribution 12wards Equity Share Capital SO0 08 2otn Dg_"
becurites Cleanng Corporatlon Limited] Agimbursement of enpenses for staff on 12651 A3 ad |
| dputation paid / payable =
Reimburiement for other enpentes ncurced | B3 BT oS 34 |
(irluraling tanes|
Dutitanding balane ingluded i Trade Payables EYERD ] 235 64 |
Malional S1ack Exchange of Indis Limited {N3EILY |Reimbursement of eupenses for waff on 3133
|Aeputation paid f payable
| Reimbi Tor ather exp WNCU T 68
Dutstanding balance inciuded in Trade Payables | 15857
- 2 R =
[Ms€ WsC limied e x_l;t_-u-seuwm for cther supenses incurred 1614 B3 57
SERI Lurnovet lees payable 2451
i Cutstanding talancs included in Trade Payables ey &35
NSE I Limited [Fayment for smrvicas 4279 | 13
Outstanding balanes included in Tragde Payabres 4z7.35 | P N
— I _
NEDI Darabaze Management Limited © [rayment for servicas | 020
s o Qutstanding balance incluced in Trade Payabies | | B
- |fs|-.ru~¢ foes J 2.45 J a50]

23 Trade payables inciude outstanding amounts of Rs. NIL (Previows Year: B3, MIL) inchuding intersst of Rs Nit, [Prewsaus Year Bs, Nil] payable 1o Micro, Smahl &
Medivm Enterpirses. Toral autstanding dues 1o Micro, Small & Medium Enterpriaes have been determinmd 1o the extenl such partics have been dennibed
an ihe basis of infermation available with the Compam:

2B AsatMarch 31, 2019 the Company dany nal have any pending Itigations which wewld impact s fina nowl position,

2% Inaceordance wath relévant provisions of Campanies Act, 2013, the Company did not have any long-term contracts wchiding derivative contracts 15 a1
Mareh 33, 2019

30 For the year 2018-19 the campany is nat required bo Ivansfar aiy arngunt inta the Investod Educa bon B Prolection Fund as requeed under relevant
Fravisions of the Companies act, 2013

31 CapHal snd athar commiments

31.03.201% 31.03.2014
o [Rs. in Lakhs )
Estimated amount of canbracts remaining o be executed on capital account {her oT
of advances) and not provded
Cther commitments 13845

f& 13845 B 074
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32 Ministry of Carporate Affairs {“MCAY]) through Companies {Indian Accounting Standards} Amendment Rules, 2018 has notified the new Standard Ind 45 115
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers” which is effective from April 1, 2018,

The core principle of Ind AS 115 is that an entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised gaods ar services ta customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the standard introduces a 5
step approach to revenus recognition:

- Step 1:dentify the contract{s} with a custamer

- Step 2; Wentify the performance obligation in contract

- Step 3: Determine the transaction price

-Step 4: Allacate the transaction price to the performance abligations in the cantract
-Step 5: Recognise revenue when {or as) the entity satisfies a performance obiligation

Under Ind AS 115, an emlity recognises revenue when (or as) a perfarmance obligation is satisfled, |.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligatien is transferred 1o the customer,

The standard permits two possible methods of transition:
« Ratrospective approach - Under this approach the standard will be applied retrospectively to cach prior reporting period presented in aceordance wath Ind
AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

+ Retrospectively with cumubative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the date of initial application (Cumulative catch - up appraach}

The Company has adopt the standard an April 1, 2018 by using the cumulative catch-up transition method and accordingly comparatives for the year ending
or ended March 31, 2019 will ot be retrospectively adjusted. The effect on adoption of Ind A5 115 is expected to be insignificant.

33 Financial Risk Management
The Company's business actlvities expose it to a variety of financial risks, namely liquidity risk, market risks and credit risk. The Company's senior
management has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework, The Company's risk
management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriste risk limits and controls and to menfor risks
and adherence tg limits. Risk managemant policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities.

Treasury department that pravides assurance that the Company's financial risk activities are goverred by appropniate policies and procedures and that
financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company's palicies and risk objectives, The Treasury department activities are
designed to:
- protect the Company’s financial results and pasition from financial risks

maintain market risks within acceptable parameters, while optimising retuens; and
- protect the Company's financial investments, while maximising returns.
The Treasury department is respansible to maximise the return on companies internally generated funds.

A MANAGEMENT OF LIQLIDITY RISK
Liguidity risk 15 the nisk that the Company will face in meeting its abligations assoriated with its financial liabilities, The Company's approach to managing
liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to meet its tiabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses. In deing this, management
considers both normal and stressed conditions.

The Comparty maintains a conservative funding and investment strategy, with a positive cash balance during the year ended 31st March, 2019,

The Company's treasury department regularly manitors the rolling forecasts to ensure it has sufficient cash on an on-gaing basis to meet operational needs.
Any short term surplus cash generated by the operating entities, over and above the amount required far working capital management and other
operational requirerments, 15 retained as cash equivalents (to the extent reguired) , other highly liguid investments and excess is invested in interest bearing
term deposits and other highly marketable debt investments with appropriate maturities 1o aptimise the returns on investments while ensuring sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabdlities.

[Rs in lakhs)

Particulars

Carrylng amount

Payable on demand

Less Than 12 Month

More than 12 months

As at March 31, 2019
Trade payables
Depasits

Margins From Members
Cher liabilities

1,166.09
332.08
472

0.38

332.09
FT4.72

1,166.09

0.38

Particulars

Carrying amount

Payable on demand

Less Than 12 Month

Mere than 12 months

As at March 31, 2018
Trade payables
Depasits

Marging From Members
Dther liablities

487.68
312.28
84232

313.28
B842.32

487.68
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MANAGEMENT OF MARKET RISK

The Company’s size and operations rasult in it being exposed to the following market risks that arise from its use of financial instruments:

* price risk;

+ foreign exchange risk and

= interest rate risk .

The abave risks may affect the Company's income and expenses, or the value of its financial instruments, The abjective of the Company's management of
market risk is to maintain this risk within acceptable parameters, while optimising returns.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
Fhe Company considers the following components of its Balance Sheet to be managed capital:
Total equity (as shown in the balance sheet}. — retained profit, share capital.

The Company manages its capital so as lo safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimise returns to our shareholders. The tapital structure
of the Company is based on managemeant’s judgement of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic and day-to-day needs, We
cansider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in light of ¢hanges in ecanomic conditions and the risk characteristics of
the underlying assets, n order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the group may adjust the amoaunt of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares

The Company alms to translate profitable growth to superior cash generation through efficient capital management, The Campany's policy is to maintain a
stable and strang capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investor, creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development
and growlh of its business. The Company's focus is on keeping strong total equity base to ensure independence, security, as well as a high financial flexibility for
potential future borrowings, if required, without impacting the risk profile of the Company, The Company will take appropriate steps in arder to maintain, or if
nacessary adjust, its capital structure. The Company is not subject to finandial covenants in any of its significant financing agreements

The management monitors the return on capital as well 35 the level of dividends to shareholders. The company is required to maintain the minimum networth
of Rs.50 crores and enhance it to Rs.300 crores at the end of third year ta operate an exchange as per SEBI guidelines.

Contingent liabilicy:

31.03.2019 31.03.2018
{Rs. in l.al:h;_;

Contingent Liabilities s i

Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary.
As per our report of even date attached

Fur Haribbakii & Co. L\P For and on behalf of the Board of Directors.
Chartered Accountants
\CAI Firm Reglstration No. 103523W / W 100048

Samir K Barua - Mukesh Agarwal Vivek Singhvi
Sumant Sakhardande Director Directar Chief Executive Officer
Partner [ DIN:DD211077 ] [ DIN:D3054853 |
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Place : Mumbai NitIn Bhadre Chirag Nagda
Date : April 24, 2019 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place : Mumbai

Date : April 24, 2013
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